
 

Eugene City Council Agenda May 21, 2014 

 

    
    

EUGENE CITY COUNCIL AGENDAEUGENE CITY COUNCIL AGENDAEUGENE CITY COUNCIL AGENDAEUGENE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA    
May 21, 2014May 21, 2014May 21, 2014May 21, 2014     

 

12:00 PM    CITY COUNCIL CITY COUNCIL CITY COUNCIL CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSIONWORK SESSIONWORK SESSIONWORK SESSION    

        Harris HallHarris HallHarris HallHarris Hall    

        125 East 8125 East 8125 East 8125 East 8thththth    AvenueAvenueAvenueAvenue    

        Eugene, Oregon 97401Eugene, Oregon 97401Eugene, Oregon 97401Eugene, Oregon 97401    

    

 
 

Meeting of Meeting of Meeting of Meeting of May 21, 2014May 21, 2014May 21, 2014May 21, 2014; ; ; ;     

Her Honor Mayor Kitty Piercy PresidingHer Honor Mayor Kitty Piercy PresidingHer Honor Mayor Kitty Piercy PresidingHer Honor Mayor Kitty Piercy Presiding 

 

CouncilorsCouncilorsCouncilorsCouncilors 

George Brown, President  Pat Farr, Vice President 

Mike Clark    George Poling 

   Chris Pryor    Claire Syrett  

   Betty Taylor    Alan Zelenka 
 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
Harris Hall 
 
12:00 p.m. A. WORK SESSION: 

Sidewalks and Trees 
 
12:45 p.m. B. WORK SESSION: 

Consider Initiation of a Metro Plan Amendment for Property at 955 
Coburg Road 

Mayor: The Eugene City Council will now meet in Executive Session to consult with 
counsel concerning legal rights and duties regarding current litigation or litigation 
likely to be filed. The executive Session is held pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(h). 
 



 

Eugene City Council Agenda May 21, 2014 

Representatives of the news media and designated staff shall be allowed to attend the 
executive session. All other members of the audience are asked to leave the room. 
Representatives of the news media are specifically directed not to report on any of the 
deliberations during the executive session, except to state the general subject of the 
session as previously announced. No decision may be made in executive session. At 
the end of the executive session, we will return to open session and welcome the 
audience back into the room. 

 
 
*time approximate 

 
 
The Eugene City Council welcomes your interest in these agenda items.  This meeting location is wheelchair-
accessible.  For the hearing impaired, FM assistive-listening devices are available or an interpreter can be provided 
with 48 hours' notice prior to the meeting.  Spanish-language interpretation will also be provided with 48 hours' 
notice.  To arrange for these services, contact the receptionist at 541-682-5010.  City Council meetings are telecast 
live on Metro Television, Comcast channel 21, and rebroadcast later in the week.   
 
City Council meetings and work sessions are broadcast live on the City’s Web site.  In addition to the live broadcasts, 
an indexed archive of past City Council webcasts is also available.  To access past and present meeting webcasts, 
locate the links at the bottom of the City’s main Web page (www.eugene-or.gov). 
 
El Consejo de la Ciudad de Eugene aprecia su interés en estos asuntos de la agenda.  El sitio de la reunión tiene 
acceso para sillas de ruedas.  Hay accesorios disponibles para personas con afecciones del oído, o se les puede 
proveer un interprete avisando con 48 horas de anticipación.  También se provee el servicio de interpretes en 
idioma español avisando con 48 horas de anticipación.  Para reservar estos servicios llame a la recepcionista al 541-
682-5010.  Todas las reuniones del consejo estan gravados en vivo en Metro Television, canal 21 de Comcast y 
despues en la semana se pasan de nuevo.   

 
  

For more information, contact the Council Coordinator at 541-682-5010, 

or visit us online at www.eugenewww.eugenewww.eugenewww.eugene----or.gov.or.gov.or.gov.or.gov. 



 

 

EEEEUGENE UGENE UGENE UGENE CCCCITY ITY ITY ITY CCCCOUNCILOUNCILOUNCILOUNCIL

AAAAGENDA GENDA GENDA GENDA IIIITEM TEM TEM TEM SSSSUMMARYUMMARYUMMARYUMMARY
 
  

Work Session:  Sidewalks and Trees
 
Meeting Date:  May 21, 2014  
Department:  Public Works   
www.eugene-or.gov 
  
  
ISSUE STATEMENT 
This work session provides an opportunity for 
sidewalks and street trees.  The discussion 
maintaining safe sidewalks damaged by street trees.
 
 
BACKGROUND 
Eugene’s public improvements code helps create and protect safety and improves the quality of 
life in Eugene. Tree regulations in the environment and health code help develop and preserve a 
sustainable system of trees in Eugene.  Safe, clean and hazard
role in supporting mobility and livability.  Sidewalks form the network that connects 
community’s neighborhoods. Likewise, street trees play a critical role in contributing t
attractive, and prosperous neighborhood environments.  
 
Standards for sidewalk maintenance in Eugene are similar to regulatory programs found in other 
jurisdictions, where the adjacent property owner is responsible for the maintenance and 
adjacent sidewalks and is assigned liability for any damages resulting from the failure to do so
Approximately 750 miles of sidewalks are included in the transportation system.  Over 54,000 
street trees can be found in developed street systems
$120 million.  Annually, the sidewalk inspection program sends out approximately 
compliance notices for sidewalk safety issues
 
Current code requires planting street trees 
trees that can be planted in various locations and planter strip soil types and widths.   Code and 
Standard Specifications also require protection and preservation of street tree
when street trees are in conflict with sidewalks include:  
hazard tree; 2) the tree is removed by the City if the 
results in an unstable tree; 3) the tree is preserved if the sidewalk can be made safe and the 
repairs can be expected to last five years; 
adjacent property owner if there is currently 
the approved list and is a species likely to continue 
currently being updated to remove trees that have proved to be problematic (sweetgums were 
taken off the list in 2004) and to add spec

C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter

OUNCILOUNCILOUNCILOUNCIL    

UMMARYUMMARYUMMARYUMMARY 

Work Session:  Sidewalks and Trees  

 Agenda Item Number:  
 Staff Contact:  Eric Johnson; Mark Snyder

Contact Telephone Number:  541-682-4904; 

This work session provides an opportunity for the council to review City policies related to
discussion will focus on the assignment of responsibility for 

sidewalks damaged by street trees. 

Eugene’s public improvements code helps create and protect safety and improves the quality of 
life in Eugene. Tree regulations in the environment and health code help develop and preserve a 

of trees in Eugene.  Safe, clean and hazard-free sidewalks play an important 
role in supporting mobility and livability.  Sidewalks form the network that connects 

neighborhoods. Likewise, street trees play a critical role in contributing t
and prosperous neighborhood environments.   

Standards for sidewalk maintenance in Eugene are similar to regulatory programs found in other 
, where the adjacent property owner is responsible for the maintenance and 

adjacent sidewalks and is assigned liability for any damages resulting from the failure to do so
0 miles of sidewalks are included in the transportation system.  Over 54,000 

street trees can be found in developed street systems with an estimated appraised value of over 
.  Annually, the sidewalk inspection program sends out approximately 

compliance notices for sidewalk safety issues, of which approximately 65 percent

planting street trees in new developments.  These regulations list species of 
trees that can be planted in various locations and planter strip soil types and widths.   Code and 
Standard Specifications also require protection and preservation of street trees. 
when street trees are in conflict with sidewalks include:  1) the tree is removed by the City if it is a 

the tree is removed by the City if the cutting of roots to create a safe sidewalk 
he tree is preserved if the sidewalk can be made safe and the 

repairs can be expected to last five years; 4) the tree can be removed with a no-
adjacent property owner if there is currently minor damage to infrastructure, the tree is not on 
the approved list and is a species likely to continue doing damage at that location
currently being updated to remove trees that have proved to be problematic (sweetgums were 
taken off the list in 2004) and to add species more appropriate for different site types.  Many of the 

ment Converter\temp\3411.docx 

Agenda Item Number:  A 
Eric Johnson; Mark Snyder 

4904; 541-682-4819 
 

policies related to 
the assignment of responsibility for 

Eugene’s public improvements code helps create and protect safety and improves the quality of 
life in Eugene. Tree regulations in the environment and health code help develop and preserve a 

free sidewalks play an important 
role in supporting mobility and livability.  Sidewalks form the network that connects the 

neighborhoods. Likewise, street trees play a critical role in contributing to healthy, 

Standards for sidewalk maintenance in Eugene are similar to regulatory programs found in other 
, where the adjacent property owner is responsible for the maintenance and repair of 

adjacent sidewalks and is assigned liability for any damages resulting from the failure to do so.   
0 miles of sidewalks are included in the transportation system.  Over 54,000 

with an estimated appraised value of over 
.  Annually, the sidewalk inspection program sends out approximately 250 non-

percent are tree related.   

.  These regulations list species of 
trees that can be planted in various locations and planter strip soil types and widths.   Code and 

s. Typical outcomes 
the tree is removed by the City if it is a 

roots to create a safe sidewalk 
he tree is preserved if the sidewalk can be made safe and the 

-cost permit by the 
the tree is not on 

at that location.  The tree list is 
currently being updated to remove trees that have proved to be problematic (sweetgums were 

ies more appropriate for different site types.  Many of the 

 

-1-

Item A.



 

 C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\3411.docx 

trees causing damage now were planted decades ago, before the list was approved.  
RELATED CITY POLICIES 
Eugene Code 7.375 - Sidewalks, Curbs and Access Connections: Owner's Responsibility to 
Maintain: The abutting property owner is responsible for maintaining a safe sidewalk and is liable 
for any injury or damages caused by failure to do so. The City may serve notice on the owner to 
repair the adjoining sidewalk as conditions may require. 
 
Eugene Code 7.280 - Street Tree Program - Policy, Standards, and Procedures: In order to create 
attractive and healthy neighborhood environments, street trees shall be planted and established 
in accordance with the standards and procedures in this section and the adopted policies of the 
Urban Forest Management Plan. 
 
Eugene Code 6.300 - 6.330 - Tree Preservation: Requires a permit to remove a street tree and 
establishes criteria for permit issuance. 
 
City of Eugene Urban Forest Management Plan, 1992 
 
 
COUNCIL OPTIONS 
This matter is before the council as an information and discussion item. No action is required. 
 
 
CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION 
There is no city manager recommendation. 
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION 
There is no suggested motion. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
A. Eugene Code 7.375 
B. Eugene Code 7.280 
C. Eugene Code 6.300 - 6.330  
D.  Administrative Order No. 58-10-01-F Fee Schedule for Sidewalk and Driveway Repair 
 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION 
Staff Contact:   Eric Johnson                                      
Telephone:   541-682-4904                                           
Staff E-Mail:  eric.p.johnson@ci.eugene.or.us                      
  
Staff Contact:   Mark Snyder 
Telephone:  541-682-4819   
Staff E-Mail:  mark.r.snyder@ci.eugene.or.us 

-2-

Item A.



Attachment A 
 

7.375 Sidewalks, Curbs and Access Connections - Owner's Responsibility to 
Maintain.  
(1) The owner of land abutting a sidewalk shall maintain the sidewalk and 

curb in good repair and safe condition.  Access connection(s) shall be 
maintained in good repair and safe condition by the owner of land 
served by the access connection(s). 

(2) The owner shall be liable for injury, damage or loss to person or 
property caused by the owner's negligent failure to comply with 
subsection (1) of this section.  

(3) The city shall not be liable for injury, damage or loss to any person or 
property caused in whole or in part by the defective or dangerous 
condition of any sidewalk, curb or access connection.  

(4) The city engineer may serve notice on the owner to reconstruct or 
repair the abutting or adjoining sidewalk, curb or access connection as 
conditions may require.  A notice to reconstruct or repair and the 
owner's duty to repair shall be governed by sections 7.152 to 7.154 of 
this code.  

(5) Neither the duty of the owner to maintain the sidewalk, curb and access 
connection in good repair and safe condition, nor liability for owner's 
failure to do so is dependent upon the notice from the city to reconstruct 
or repair.  

(6) The owner shall defend and hold harmless the city from all claims for 
loss or damage arising from the owner's failure to comply with 
subsection 7.375(1).  

(Section 7.375 amended by Ordinance No. 19393, enacted July 28, 1986; amended by 
Ordinance No. 20458, enacted March 8, 2010, effective April 10, 2010.)  

 

-3-

Item A.



Attachment B 
 
7.280 Street Tree Program - Policy, Standards, Procedure. 

(1) Policy.  In order to create attractive and healthy neighborhood 
environments, no approval shall be granted for a development that 
involves the creation of a street unless the applicant has submitted and 
received approval of a street tree plan that ensures street trees will be 
planted and established in accordance with the standards and 
procedures provided for in this section and the adopted policies of the 
Urban Forest Management Plan.  Street trees shall be planted in 
accordance with the approved street tree plan as each lot or area is 
developed, and shall be required on streets that abut the development 
as well as on new streets within the development site. 

(2) Standards.  The city manager, or designee, shall by administrative rules 
adopted pursuant to section 2.019 of this code establish standards and 
specifications that ensure that new trees planted are of the highest 
quality, require low maintenance, and do not interfere with public safety.  
The standards shall include, but not be limited to, the type of trees that 
may be planted, and requirements for planting and establishment of the 
trees.  As used in this section, "establishment" includes watering, initial 
pruning, and replacement of trees, if necessary, for a period of three 
years from the date of planting. 

(3) Procedure.  Upon approval of the street tree plan, and prior to approval 
of the final plat for subdivisions, planned unit developments, partitions, 
or approved development plans, the applicant shall: 
(a) Pay to the city a fee established by the city manager pursuant to 

section 2.020 of this code that is equal to the cost of the purchase, 
installation and establishment of the street trees required by the 
approved street tree plan.  Thereafter, the city shall assume 
responsibility for the purchase, installation and establishment of 
the street trees; or 

(b) Purchase, install and establish the street trees in accordance with 
the approved street tree plan, upon (I) first paying to the city a fee 
established by the city manager pursuant to section 2.020 of this 
code to reimburse the city for its costs in connection with plan 
review, inspection, administration and monitoring, and (ii) filing 
with the city a security bond or deposit in an amount determined 
by the city to be sufficient to ensure performance under the 
approved street tree plan. 

Existing large-scale street trees on or adjacent to a development site 
shall be retained unless approved for removal by the city pursuant to 
section 6.300 to 6.330 of this code during site development or in 
conjunction with a street construction project.  Any street tree removed 
by permit through demolition or construction within the street right-of-
way shall be replaced within the street right-of-way at a location 
approved by the city with a tree of similar value.  The value of the 

-4-

Item A.



existing street tree to be removed shall be calculated using the methods 
set forth in the edition then in effect of the Guide for Plant Appraisal 
published by the International Society of Arboriculture Council of Tree 
Landscape Appraisers.  The developer shall be responsible for the cost 
of the planting, maintenance and establishment of the replacement tree. 

(Section 7.280 added by Ordinance No. 20056, enacted August 5, 1996, effective September 4, 
1996.) 

 

-5-

Item A.



Attachment C 
 

Tree Preservation 
 
6.300 Definitions.  As used in section 6.305 to 6.330 of this Code, the following 

definitions apply: 
 

Fell.  To remove or sever a tree or the intentional use of any procedure the 
natural result of which is to cause the death or substantial destruction of the 
tree.  Fell does not in any context include normal trimming, pruning, or 
topping of trees. 
 
Heritage tree.  Any tree of exceptional value to our community based on its 
size (relative to species), history, location, or species, or any combination of 
these criteria.  The specific methodology for classifying a tree as a heritage 
tree shall be established by administrative rule of the city manager adopted 
pursuant to section 2.019 of this code. 
 
Logging plan.  A document describing the equipment to be used on site, the 
access roads, grading, skid paths and any other environmental change that 
will be affected to permit logging, as well as mitigation efforts designed to 
protect from the negative effects of the logging process all wetlands, riparian 
zones, habitat, neighboring residences, and such other areas as the city 
manager or designee determines is appropriate. 
 
Occupied parcel.  Real property within the boundaries of an ad valorem tax 
lot description as found in the Lane County, Oregon, ad valorem tax records 
with one or more dwellings thereon, or a parcel which has been approved for 
a dwelling. 
 
Parcel.  Real property within the boundaries of an ad valorem tax lot 
description as found in the Lane County, Oregon, ad valorem tax records. 
 
Plot plan.  Final subdivision plat, final PUD plan, or final major or minor 
partition, encompassing an entire contiguous ownership. 
 
Street tree.  A living, standing woody plant typically having a single trunk at 
least 1-1/2 inch in diameter at a point six inches above mean ground level at 
the base of the trunk, that is located within the street right-of-way. 
 
Tree.  A living, standing, woody plant having a trunk 25 inches in 
circumference (or approximately eight inches in diameter) at a point 4-1/2 
feet above mean ground level at the base of the trunk. 

(Section 6.300 added by Ordinance No. 17072, enacted May 20, 1974; amended by Ordinance 
No. 18122, enacted February 22, 1978; Ordinance No. 18123, enacted March 13, 1978; 

-6-

Item A.



Ordinance No. 18779, enacted April 22, 1981; Ordinance No. 19927, enacted July 12, 1993; 
and Ordinance No. 20056, enacted August 5, 1996, effective September 4, 1996.) 

 
6.305 Tree Felling Prohibition. 

(1) Except as provided in section 6.330, no person may fell more than five 
trees within a period of 12 consecutive months from a parcel of private 
property consisting of 20,000 or more square feet of area without a 
permit. 

(2) Except as provided in section 6.330, no person may fell one or more 
trees from a parcel of private property consisting of less than 20,000 
square feet of area without a permit. 

(3) Notwithstanding subsections (1) and (2) of this section and section 
6.330(b) of this code, no person shall remove a street tree without first 
obtaining a permit from the city manager specifically authorizing the 
removal of a street tree. Permit approval may be conditioned upon 
replacement of the street tree with another tree pre-approved by the 
city, or a requirement to pay to the city an amount sufficient to fund the 
planting and establishment by the city of a tree of similar value.  The 
value of the existing street tree to be removed shall be calculated using 
the methods set forth in the edition then in effect of the Guide for Plant 
Appraisal published by the International Society of Arboriculture Council 
of Tree Landscape Appraisers. 

(4) Notwithstanding subsections (1) and (2) of this section and section 
6.330(b) of this code, no person shall fell a heritage tree from within the 
public right-of-way except where such removal, and authorization for its 
removal, has been granted by the city because its removal is necessary 
to protect the public health, safety, or welfare. 

(Section 6.305 added by Ordinance No. 17072, enacted May 20, 1974; amended by Ordinance 
No. 18122, enacted February 22, 1968; Ordinance No. 18123, enacted March 13, 1978; 
Ordinance No. 19927, enacted July 12, 1993; and Ordinance No. 20056, enacted August 5, 
1996, effective September 4, 1996.) 

 
6.310 Procedure for Obtaining Tree Felling Permit. 

(1) A person shall apply to the city manager or designee for a tree felling 
permit, on an application form developed by the city manager or 
designee. 

(2) The application shall be accompanied by an application fee in an 
amount established by the city manager pursuant to section 2.020 of 
this code. 

(3) The application also shall be accompanied by a logging plan if the 
applicant proposes to fell more than ten trees. 

(4) If the applicant proposes to fell ten or less trees, then the city manager 
or designee shall act on the permit within ten business days of receiving 
a completed application.  The city manager or designee may extend the 
response time to up to 30 days if he/she determines that public notice 
of the application should be given and public comment taken pursuant 

-7-

Item A.



to subsection (6) of this section, because substantial impacts on 
neighboring properties or on other natural values are anticipated. 

(5) If the applicant proposes to fell more than ten trees, then the city 
manager or designee shall act on the permit within 30 days of receiving 
a completed application, but only after giving public notice of the 
application and an opportunity to provide comments as provided in 
subsection (6) of this section. 

(6) Where public notice and a comment period is required before acting on 
an application, the city manager or designee shall identify abutting 
properties and others which are partly or wholly within 200 feet of the 
site on which the trees are to be felled.  Written notice of the application 
shall be mailed by the city manager or designee to the owners and 
occupants of the identified properties, as well as to persons who have 
requested such notice.  The notice shall provide that persons may 
submit written comments on the application as directed in the notice, for 
a period of 15 days from the date of the notice. 

(Section 6.310 added by Ordinance No. 17072, enacted May 20, 1974; amended by Ordinance 
No. 18123, enacted March 13, 1978; Ordinance No. 18779, enacted April 22, 1981; and 
Ordinance No. 19927, enacted July 12, 1993.) 

 
6.320 Criteria for Permit Issuance.  

(1) The city manager or designee shall approve, approve with conditions, 
or deny a permit application based on consideration of the following 
criteria: 
(a) The condition of the trees with respect to disease, hazardous or 

unsafe conditions, danger of falling, proximity to existing 
structures or proposed construction, or interference with utility 
services or pedestrian or vehicular traffic safety; 

(b) The topography of the land and the effect of felling on erosion, soil 
retention, stability of earth, flow and character of surface waters 
and streams, protection of nearby trees and windbreaks; 

(c) The effect the trees' removal has on the environmental quality of 
the area, including scenic and wildlife habitat values; 

(d) The necessity to remove trees in order to construct proposed 
improvements, or to otherwise utilize the applicant's property in a 
manner consistent with its zoning, this code, the Metro Plan, and 
other applicable adopted plans; 

(e) Fire safety considerations where, in the opinion of the fire 
marshal, removal is necessary to protect existing or proposed 
structures; 

(f) The adequacy of the applicant's proposals, if any, to plant new 
trees or native vegetation to mitigate the environmental effects of 
removal of the trees to be felled; and 

(g) That the felling would be compatible with generally accepted 
principles of horticulture, silvaculture, ecology, or landscape 
architecture; 

-8-

Item A.



(h) The compatibility of the felling with guidelines adopted by the 
Oregon Department of Forestry. 

(2) In the event a plot plan for full development of the site has not been 
approved by the city, felling of trees shall be permitted only on a limited 
basis consistent with the preservation of the site's future development 
potential and preservation of important natural values as prescribed in 
the Metro Plan and this code, and consistent with the following criteria: 
(a) Wooded areas associated with natural drainage ways and water 

areas shall be retained to preserve riparian habitat and to 
minimize erosion; 

(b) Wooded areas that will likely provide an attractive on-site amenity 
to occupants of future developments shall be retained; 

(c) Wooded areas along ridgelines and hilltops shall be retained for 
their scenic and wildlife habitat values; 

(d) Wooded areas along property lines shall be retained to provide 
buffers from adjacent properties; 

(e) Trees shall be retained in sufficiently large areas and dense 
stands so as to ensure against windthrow; 

(f) Clear cuts of developable areas shall be avoided so as to retain a 
wooded character of future building sites, and preserve housing 
and design options for future city residents. 

(3) The city manager or designee may attach conditions to the approval of 
a permit to ensure the replacement of trees, landscape or otherwise 
reduce the effects of the felling, and may require the posting of a bond 
to ensure that all conditions are met. 

(Section 6.320 added by Ordinance No. 17072, enacted May 20, 1974; amended by Ordinance 
No. 18053, enacted September 26, 1977; Ordinance No. 18123, enacted March 13, 1978; and 
Ordinance No. 19927, enacted July 12, 1993.) 

 
6.325 Appeal.  Any person who is denied a permit, or is granted a permit with 

conditions, may appeal the denial or imposition of conditions, by filing a 
written notice of appeal with the city manager or designee within 15 days of 
the date of denial or the date of issuance of the permit with conditions 
imposed.  In addition, any person who provided comments on an application 
pursuant to section 6.310(6), and who is dissatisfied with the action of the 
city manager or designee in granting a permit, whether with or without 
conditions, also may appeal by following the same procedures.  The appeal 
shall be governed by section 2.021 of this code.  The appeal must include 
the specific basis or bases upon which the appellant asserts that the decision 
was in error. 

(Section 6.325 added by Ordinance No. 17072, enacted May 20, 1974; amended by Ordinance 
No. 18123, enacted March 13, 1978; Ordinance No. 19926, enacted June 28, 1993; and 
Ordinance No. 19927, enacted July 12, 1993.) 

 
6.330 Trees, Felling - Exceptions.  The requirements and restrictions of sections 

6.305 to 6.310 of this code or rules adopted thereunder do not apply to: 

-9-

Item A.



(a) The action of any city officer or employe or of any public utility 
necessary to remove or alleviate an immediate danger to life or 
property; to restore utility service; or to reopen a public thoroughfare to 
traffic; 

(b) An occupied parcel of private property consisting of less than 20,000 
square feet of area; 

(c) Felling of trees that are nuisances under section 6.010 of this code; 
(d) Felling of trees that are in violation of section 7.640 of this code; 
(e) Any felling necessary to install or maintain improvements such as 

streets and sewers within publicly owned and accepted rights-of-way or 
utility easements; 

(f) That portion of a PUD and/or PUD subdivision development for which 
final approval has been obtained. 

(Section 6.330 amended by Ordinance No. 17072, enacted May 20, 1974; amended by 
Ordinance No. 18053, enacted September 26, 1977; Ordinance No. 18122, enacted February 
22, 1978; Ordinance No. 18123, enacted March 13, 1978; Ordinance No. 18779, enacted April 
22, 1981; Ordinance No. 19393, enacted July 28, 1986, effective January 28, 1987; and 
Ordinance No. 19927, enacted July 12, 1993.) 

 

-10-

Item A.



ADMINISTRATIVE ORDER NO581001F

of the

City Manager of the City of Eugene

AMENDMENT OF FEES FOR MAINTENANCE SERVICES FOR

SIDEWALK AND DRIVEWAY APRON REPLACEMENT AND

GRINDING AND REPEAL OF ADMINISTRATIVE ORDER NO

589914F

The City Manager of the City of Eugene finds as follows

A Section 2020 of the Eugene Code 1971 authorizes the City Manager to
determine and set fees and charges to be imposed by the City for services goods use of
municipal property and licenses and permits In accordance with the procedures set forth
therein and the further authority of Section 7130 of the Eugene Code 1971 on July 30
1999 Administrative Order No 589914F was adopted establishing the Schedule of
Rates for Maintenance Services for Sidewalk Replacement and Grinding the Fee

Schedule These maintenance services are provided on request to private parties and
other governmental agencies that construct projects that become public improvements
upon completion and are charged for on a per square foot basis for replacement and a flat

rate for grinding

B On March 3 2010 I issued Administrative Order No 581001 proposing
to amend the Fee Schedule established by Administrative Order No 589914F by
revising the sidewalk replacement rate and grinding rate and adding a driveway apron

replacement rate Notice of the proposed amendments was provided to the Mayor and
City Councilors made available to any persons who had requested such notice and made
available for review by interested persons at the office of the City Manager 777 Pearl

Street Room 105 Eugene OR 97401 during normal business hours In addition on

March 5 2010 the Notice was published in the RegisterGuard and posted at two

locations at City Hall

C The Notice provided that comments would be received for 15 days from
the date of publication and posting No comments were received within the time or in the
manner described in the Notice

D Based on the above findings the Fee Schedule should be amended as

proposed in order to recover the full cost of maintenance services for sidewalk

replacement and grinding In determining the charges I have considered the applicable
policies enactments and directives of the City Council the amounts charged for these
services by the City in the past the full costs ofproviding these services supported by the
fees the amounts charged by other comparable providers and the revenue needs of the

City as determined by the adopted City budget

On the basis of these findings I order that

Administrative Order Page l of 2

-11-

Item A.



1 The fees set forth on the Schedule of Rates for Maintenance Services for

Sidewalk Replacement and Grinding attached as Exhibit A to this Order are the fees to be

charged for the described services as of the effective date of this Order

2 Administrative Order No 559914F is repealed as of the effective date
of this Order

Dated and effective this day of Marsh 2010

on R Ruiz

City Manager

Administrative Order Page 2 of 2

-12-

Item A.



SCHEDULE of RATES FOR MAINTENANCE SERVICES
FOR SIDEWALK AND DRIVEWAY APRON REPLACEMENT AND GRINDING

Sidewalk Replacement 300 mobilization fee plus 7 per sq ft @ 4
minimum 25 sqft
additional thickness add material costs
1 time mobilization fee

Driveway Apron Replacement 30000 mobilization fee plus 10 per sq ft

1 time mobilization fee fee waived if sidewalk

replacement is being performed

Grinding p min20 er ln ft 5 In ft

Exhibit A to Administrative Order No 58 1001F

-13-

Item A.



 



C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\3418.doc 

EEEEUGENE UGENE UGENE UGENE CCCCITY ITY ITY ITY CCCCOUNCILOUNCILOUNCILOUNCIL    

AAAAGENDA GENDA GENDA GENDA IIIITEM TEM TEM TEM SSSSUMMARYUMMARYUMMARYUMMARY 
 
  

Work Session: Consider Initiation of a Metro Plan Amendment for Property at 955 
Coburg Road  

 
Meeting Date:  May 21, 2014 Agenda Item Number: B  
Department:  Planning and Development Staff Contact:  Steve Nystrom 
www.eugene-or.gov Contact Telephone Number:  541-682-8385 
   
  
ISSUE STATEMENT 
This work session is being held to consider whether the City Council should initiate a Metro Plan 
amendment process to designate the property at 955 Coburg Road as low-density residential (LDR).  
 
This matter was previously scheduled for discussion on February 12, 2014, March 12, 2014, and 
April 14, 2014.  Prior to each scheduled work session,  the owner’s representative and 
neighborhood organization has requested that the council work session be postponed.  Both 
parties indicated that they were in the process of negotiating a settlement that would potentially 
eliminate the need for the work session.  The City Council granted each request. 
 
As of the writing of this agenda item summary, it is staffs’ understanding that the parties are still 
negotiating.   In the event it is still necessary to hold a work session to consider initiation of a 
Metro Plan amendment to low-density residential, the analysis that was included in the February 
12, 2014, packet is included below.  Please refer to the February 12, 2014, agenda packet, linked 
here, for the attachments. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
The property in question is located at 955 Coburg Road and is approximately one acre in size 
(Attachment A).  The current owner, Amber Benson, applied for a zone change from R-1, low-
density residential to R-2, medium-density residential (MDR) in January 2013.  In May 2013, the 
Hearings Official determined that the zone change request was consistent with the Metro Plan and 
refinement plan designation of medium-density residential (MDR) and approved the proposed 
zone change.  That decision was appealed to the Planning Commission, who upheld the zone 
change approval in a unanimous 7-0 vote in September, 2013.  That decision was subsequently 
appealed to the Land Use Board of Appeals (LUBA).  While this case would likely have been 
decided by now, the parties involved agreed to table the appeal for the time being.    
 
Land Use History 
When this item was first discussed by the council on December 11, 2013, the council raised some 
questions about the original Willakenzie Area Plan (WAP) adoption process that occurred in 1992.  
The City Attorney gave a brief history of that process explaining that both the Planning 
Commission and City Council specifically addressed this parcel in 1992, and ultimately decided to 

-15-

Item B.



C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\3418.doc 

retain the medium-density designation.  Attachment B provides a brief history of the site, 
including the WAP adoption process.  Attachments C and D include excerpts from the Planning 
Commission minutes and subsequent council-adopted ordinance in 1991/1992, where both 
bodies stated their intention to maintain the subject property as MDR. As noted in those minutes, 
the Planning Commission unanimously adopted a specific motion that concerned only this 
property, with the motion recommending that the council retain the medium-density residential 
designation for this property.  That motion by the Planning Commission and the subsequent 
adoption by the council demonstrate that the current Metro Plan designation was not the result of 
a clerical or housekeeping error back in 1992.   Attachment E is a copy of the Planning 
Commission’s recent decision and findings for the Benson zone change. 
 
Existing Conditions 
The property lies on the east side of Coburg Road which is classified as a major arterial street and 
one of the key transit corridors of Envision Eugene.  The parcels fronting along the east side of 
Coburg Road, between Harlow Road and Bailey Lane, contain a mixture of medium- and low- 
density residential land.  Development along this section of Coburg Road also varies.  Properties 
immediately adjacent to the site are either developed with single-family residences or are vacant, 
while other properties contain apartments, cluster housing and churches.  Properties further 
north and south of the site are primarily designated MDR, high-density residential and 
commercial.  These properties contain a mixture of multi-family housing and commercial 
buildings.  Attachment F is a copy of the adopted Metro Plan map.  Attachment G provides a more 
detailed representation of current land use designations in the area, with the acknowledgement 
that this map is not officially adopted at this scale.  Attachment H is a brief fact sheet comparing 
the key standards for R-1 vs. R-2 zoning, to aid in this discussion. 
 
Amendment Process 
The land use code allows Metro Plan amendments to be initiated in one of two ways: 1) Property 
owners may request amendments of their own property, or 2) City Council may initiate 
amendments for any parcel or parcels.  A site specific Metro Plan amendment requires a public 
hearing and recommendation from the Planning Commission, followed by a public hearing and 
action by the City Council.  If not challenged, this process would typically take several months to 
complete.  The criteria for a Metro Plan Amendment are as follows: 

• The amendment must be consistent with the relevant Statewide Planning Goals 
• The amendment must not make the Metro Plan internally inconsistent 

 
City initiated Metro Plan amendments are typically initiated as part of larger planning efforts, such 
as Envision Eugene, Walnut Station Mixed-Use Center and the Downtown Code Amendments. 
Amendments of individual tax lots such as the subject parcel are typically made by the property 
owner themselves.  Given that this parcel is not a part of a larger planning effort, and the property 
owner is in opposition to this initiation, staff would need to assume the responsibility of preparing 
and processing the application.  Staff resources would need to be shifted away from other priority 
items, such as Envision Eugene, in order to accomplish this work.   
 
As a practical matter, the property owner may decide to submit the necessary application for 
development under the currently approved R-2 zoning, before adoption of any amendment 
becomes effective.  Under this scenario, an R-2 development could proceed even if the property is 
later re-designated to low-density residential.     
 

-16-

Item B.



C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\3418.doc 

Finally, if the council is inclined to initiate this amendment process, the council should consider 
whether a concurrent zone change is needed as well.  While a Metro Plan amendment such as this, 
if approved, automatically amends the refinement plan designation, it would not address the 
current R-2 zoning that has been approved by the Planning Commission.  If it is the council’s intent 
to ensure this parcel is developed under the R-1 standards, the council should initiate a 
concurrent zone change as well. 
 
 
RELATED CITY POLICIES 
If the council initiates the Metro Plan Amendment process, the proposal will be subject to review 
under EC 9.7700-9.7750 (Metro Plan Amendment Procedures), including compliance with all 
Statewide Planning Goals. 
 
 
COUNCIL OPTIONS 
The City Council has the following options: 

1) Initiate amendment of the Metro Plan to change 955 Coburg Road from medium-density 
residential to low-density residential. 

2) Postpone a decision on whether to initiate a Metro Plan amendment . 
3) Take no action. 

 
 

CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION 
The City Manager recommends that the council take no action. 
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION 
None. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Please refer to the February 12, 2014 agenda packet, linked here, for the 
attachments 
A. Vicinity map (Aerial) 
B. Parcel history timeline 
C. November 12, 1991, Planning Commission meeting minutes (Excerpt) 
D. City Council Ordinance and related exhibits; June 8, 1992 
E. Planning Commission Final Order: Benson Zone Change Appeal 
F. Metro Plan Diagram 
G. Existing Land Use Designations: Coburg Road Corridor 
H. Zoning Comparison: R-1 vs. R-2 
 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION 
Staff Contact:   Steve Nystrom 
Telephone:   541-682-8385  
Staff E-Mail:  steven.a.nystrom@ci.eugene.or.us 

-17-

Item B.



 


	AGENDA
	CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSIONHarris Hall
	A. WORK SESSION:
Sidewalks and Trees
	[Agenda Item Summary]
	[Attachments A - D]

	B. WORK SESSION:
Consider Initiation of a Metro Plan Amendment for Property at 955 Coburg Road
	[Agenda Item Summary]



